
Agenda\Audit and Standards Committee\23 April 2018

Department: Democratic Services

Division: Corporate 

Please ask for: Katharine Simpson

Direct Tel: 01276 707157

Surrey Heath Borough Council

Surrey Heath House
Knoll Road
Camberley

Surrey GU15 3HD
Telephone: (01276) 707100
Facsimile: (01276) 707177

DX: 32722 Camberley
Web Site: www.surreyheath.gov.uk

E-Mail: democratic.services@surreyheath.gov.uk

Friday, 13 April 2018

To: The Members of the Audit and Standards Committee
(Councillors: Paul Deach (Chairman), Rebecca Jennings-Evans (Vice Chairman), 
Rodney Bates, Edward Hawkins, Paul Ilnicki, Bruce Mansell and Conrad Sturt)

In accordance with the Substitute Protocol at Part 4 of the Constitution, 
Members who are unable to attend this meeting should give their apologies and 
arrange for one of the appointed substitutes, as listed below, to attend.  
Members should also inform their group leader of the arrangements made.

Substitutes: Councillors Dan Adams, Ruth Hutchinson, David Lewis and Oliver Lewis

Dear Councillor,

A meeting of the Audit and Standards Committee will be held at Council Chamber, Surrey 
Heath House, Knoll Road, Camberley, GU15 3HD on Monday, 23 April 2018 at 7.00 pm.  
The agenda will be set out as below. 

Please note that this meeting will be recorded.

Yours sincerely

Karen Whelan

Chief Executive

AGENDA
Pages

1 Apologies for Absence  

To receive apologies for absence and note the attendance of any 
substitute members.

2 Minutes of the Previous Meeting  

To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting of the Audit and 
Standards Committee meeting held on 8th November 2017.

3 - 6

3 Declarations of Interest  

Members are invited to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests and 
non pecuniary interests they may have with respect to matters which are 

Public Document Pack



Agenda\Audit and Standards Committee\23 April 2018

to be considered at this meeting.  Members who consider they may have 
an interest are invited to consult the Monitoring Officer or the Democratic 
Services Manager prior to the meeting.

4 Financial Statements Audit Plan 2017/18  

To consider a report setting out the External Auditor’s proposed plans for 
their audit of the Council’s 2017/18 financial statements. 

7 - 26

5 Certification of Claims and Returns  

To consider a report setting out the outcome of an audit of the certification 
of claims and returns for Housing Benefit.

27 - 42

6 Internal Audit Annual Report 2018/19  

To consider a report seeking approval of the proposed Annual Plan for the 
Council’s Internal Audit function for 2018/19.

43 - 48

7 Annual Corporate Governance Statement  

To consider the Council’s Corporate Governance Statement for 2017/18.

49 - 60

Date of Next Meeting

The next scheduled meeting of the Audit and Standards Committee will take place on 
Monday 30th July 2018 at 7pm.



Minutes\Audit and Standards Committee\8 November 2017

Minutes of a Meeting of the Audit and 
Standards Committee held at Council 
Chamber, Surrey Heath House, Knoll 
Road, Camberley, GU15 3HD on 8 
November 2017 

+ Cllr Paul Deach (Chairman)
+ Cllr Rebecca Jennings-Evans (Vice Chairman) 

+
+
+

Cllr Rodney Bates
Cllr Edward Hawkins
Cllr Paul Ilnicki

+
-

Cllr Bruce Mansell
Cllr Conrad Sturt

+  Present
-  Apologies for absence presented

In Attendance: Adrian Flynn, Chief Accountant
Neil Hewitson, KPMG
Karen Limmer, Head of Legal Services
Cllr Alan McClafferty
Kelvin Menon, Executive Head: Finance

8AS Minutes of Previous Meeting

RESOLVED that the minutes of the Audit and Standards Committee meeting held on 10 
July 2017 be approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman. 

9AS Declarations of Interest

There were no declarations of interest.

10AS 2016/17 Financial Statements

The Committee received a report setting out the Council’s audited Financial Statements 
for 2016/17 and the External Auditor’s ISA260 Report for 2016/17.

Neil Hewitson, KPMG, presented the ISA260 External Audit Report 2016/17. The report 
set out any key issues identified as a result of KPMG’s audit of the Council’s financial 
statements for the year ending 31 March 2017 and provided an assessment of the 
Authority’s arrangements to secure value for money. The Auditors were pleased to report 
that unqualified opinions had been issued in respect of both the financial statements and 
value for money arrangements. It had been concluded that the Authority had proper 
arrangements in place to ensure that it took properly informed decisions and effectively 
deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for local residents. 

The report included one recommendation arising from the audit. This concerned the risk 
around producing the accounts in accordance with the new timetable next year. This 
brings the unaudited accounts publication date to 31st May from 30th June and the audit 
completion date to 31st July from 30th September. The Council is seeking to address this 
through having an early closure in January to finalise the first 10 months and ensuring that 
the JPUT reports on time. All of the previous year’s recommendations had been 
addressed and cleared.  

Public Document PackPage 3

Agenda Item 2 



Minutes\Audit and Standards Committee\8 November 2017

It was reported that although the Council had produced its draft parent financial 
statements in line with statutory deadlines, however it was essential that the Council put 
plans in place to ensure that the required information was received from the subsidiary 
company in a timely fashion in future.

Arising from Members’ questions and comments the following points were noted:

 In order to meet financial deadlines, the Council’s assets were individually valued 
by a professional valuer as at the 31st December each year.  An analysis by the 
auditors of the movement in property indices in the period from 1st January to the 
31st March indicated that property values could have increased by potentially 
£471k. The Executive Head of Finance decided not to make this adjustment as the 
use of an index was only a representation of the movement in the property market 
as a whole and not based on a review of individual Council assets. As the 
adjustment was below the auditors £900,000 materiality threshold they were 
content for the adjustment not to be made.

 The Council’s Information Governance Manager was running mandatory training 
for all Council staff on the Council’s duty to comply with the General Data 
Protection Regulations and consideration was being given to the role of a Data 
Protection Officer.

 It was considered important that all members were familiar with the new data 
protection regulations and it was agreed that data protection training for members 
should be provided.

RESOLVED that:

i. The Chairman of the Committee approves the Financial Statements on behalf of 
the Council.

ii. The Executive Head of Finance’s Letter of Representation to the Auditors be 
approved.

11AS Disqualification Criteria for Local Authority Members

The Committee considered a report seeking feedback on Government proposals to 
update the criteria that barred individuals from becoming councillors.

The current criteria for disqualifying individuals from standing for election at a local level 
are set out in Section 80 of the Local Government Act 1972, paragraph 9 of Schedule 54B 
of the Local Democracy and Economic Development and Construction Act and Section 21 
of the Greater London Authority Act 1999.  Individuals can currently only be barred from 
standing for, or holding, office if they have within five years of the day of election, or since 
their election, been convicted in the UK, Channel Islands or Isle of Man of any offences 
and have received a sentence of imprisonment, suspended or not, for a period of not less 
than three months without the option of a fine.

The Government considers that these disqualification criteria no longer reflect the nature 
of sentencing options that can be conferred upon an individual to protect the public and 
address unlawful or unacceptable behaviour.  The consultation proposes that, in addition 
to the original disqualification criteria, individuals who had been subject to the sex offender 
notification requirements or who were subject to certain anti-social behaviour sanctions 
should also be barred from standing for election or holding public office at a local level.

The Committee acknowledged that the proposals were well intentioned however concern 
was expressed that they could be construed as an infringement of people’s privacy 
particularly in cases were convictions were considered to be spent and only needed to be 

Page 4



Minutes\Audit and Standards Committee\8 November 2017

disclosed on a need to know basis.  Furthermore a number of the penalties being used to 
tackle anti-social behaviour were based on new legislation and people would not be 
familiar with them so would not be aware of their potential impacts further down the line.

RESOLVED that:

i. the Head of Legal Services meet with the Chairman and Vice-Chairman to draft a 
response to the consultation.

ii. the draft response be circulated to the Committee for comment before its 
submission.

Chairman 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6



1

Portfolio: FinanceFINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT PLAN FOR 
2017/18

Ward(s) Affected: All

Purpose

To inform members on external audit’s plan for the audit of the 2017/18 financial 
statements 

Background 

1. Each year the Council is required to have its financial statements audited by an external 
auditor.

2. The auditors have set out their proposed audit plan for 2017/18 which includes any significant 
audit risks they have identified prior to the audit. Some of these, such as the management 
ability to override controls and the valuation of pensions and property, apply to all councils 
whereas the consolidation of a subsidiary is more specific to Surrey Heath. 

3. This year the financial statements have to be published by 31st May and audited by the 31st 
July.  As a consequence of this reduced timetable the auditors commenced their work March 
and will be returning in June to complete it. This will ensure that they are on track to report 
back to this committee on the 30th July 2018.

Resource Implications

4. The cost of the audit, as agreed nationally, is set out on page 13.
  

5. Mr Neil Hewitson will continue to be the KPMG Director in charge of the audit and he will be 
assisted by Mr Satinder Jas, who was the manager last year, and Mr Cornelius Halladay-
Garrett.

6. This will be the last year the Council has KPMG as its auditor and next year the Council’s 
auditor will be BDO.  BDO were appointed by the Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) 
which tenders for and allocates auditors across England.

Recommendation

7. The Committee is asked to receive and comment on the proposed plan as appropriate.

Contact: Kelvin Menon     01276 707257
Email:kelvin.menon@surreyheath.gov.uk

 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4 



This page is intentionally left blank



External Audit Plan 
2017/18

Surrey Heath Borough Council 

March 2018

P
age 9

KatharineS
Typewriter
ANNEX



1

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2018 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a 
Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Headlines

Financial Statement Audit

There are no signif icant changes to the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting (“the 
Code”) in 2017/18, w hich provides stability.  Deadlines for producing and signing the accounts 
have advanced.  This is a signif icant change and needs careful management to ensure the 
new  deadlines are met.  To meet the revised deadlines it is essential that the draft f inancial 
statements and all ‘prepared by client’ documentation is available in line w ith agreed 
timetables.  Where this is not achieved there is a signif icant likelihood that the audit report w ill 
not be issued by 31 July 2017.

Authority significant risks 

Those risks requiring specif ic audit attention and procedures to address the likelihood of a 
material f inancial statement error have been identif ied as:

– Valuation of land and buildings: Whilst the Authority operates a cyclical revaluation 
approach, the Code requires that all land and buildings be held at fair value.  We w ill 
consider the w ay in w hich the Authority ensures that assets not subject to in-year 
revaluation are not materially misstated;

– Pension liabilities: The valuation of the Authority’s pension liability, as calculated by the 
Actuary, is dependent upon both the accuracy and completeness of the data provided and 
the assumptions adopted.  We w ill review  the processes to ensure accuracy of data 
provided to the Actuary and consider the assumptions used in determining the valuation; 
and

– Value of investment properties: The Code requires that w here assets are subject to 
revaluation, their year end carrying value should reflect the appropriate fair value at that 
date.  In 2016/17 the Authority reported investment properties w ith a total value of £43.9m. 
The Authority exercises judgement in determining the fair value of these assets and the 
methods used to ensured the carrying values recorded each year reflect those fair values. 
Given the materiality in value and the judgement involved in determining the fair value, 
including the use of external experts, w e consider this to be an area of signif icant risk.

Value for Money Audit

Our risk assessment regarding your arrangements to secure value for 
money has identif ied the follow ing VFM signif icant risk to date:

– Financial resilience:As a result of reductions in central 
government funding, and other pressures, the Authority is having to 
make additional savings beyond those from prior years and pursue 
income generation strategies.  We w ill consider how  the Authority 
identif ies, approves, and monitors savings plans and income 
generation projects and how  budgets are monitored throughout the 
year. 

Other information

Logistics and team

Our team is led by Neil Hew itson, Director, and Satinder Jas, Manager.

Our w ork w ill be completed in four phases from February to July and 
our key deliverables are this Audit Plan and a Report to Those Charged 
With Governance.

Fees

Our fee for the 2017/18 audit is £45,905* (£47,926 2016/2017).  This is 
in line w ith the scale fees published by PSAA and includes an additional 
£4,005 aw aiting reconfirmation from the PSAA for the audit of the group 
accounts.  

Acknowledgement

We thank off icers and Members for their continuing help and 
cooperation throughout our audit.

P
age 10



2

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2018 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a 
Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Content 

The contacts at KPMG 
in connection w ith this 
report are:

Neil Hewitson
Director

Tel: 07810 404843
Neil.hew itson@kpmg.co.uk

Satinder Jas
Manager

Tel: 07979 612771
Satinder.jas@kpmg.co.uk

Page
Headlines 
1.  Introduction 3
2.  Financial statements audit planning 4
3.  Value for money arrangements work 10
4.  Other matters 12
Appendices
1: Key elements of our financial statements audit approach
2: Independence and objectivity requirements 
3: Quality framework 

This report is addressed to Surrey Heath Borough Council (the Authority) and has been prepared for the sole use of the Authority. We take no responsibility to any member 
of  staff acting in their individual capacities, or to third parties. PSAA issued a document entitled Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies summarising 
where the responsibilities of auditors begin and end and what is expected from audited bodies. We draw your attention to this document which is available on PSAA’s website 
(www.psaa.co.uk).

External auditors do not act as a substitute for the audited body’s own responsibility for putting in place proper arrangements to ensure that public business is conducted in 
accordance with the law and proper standards, and that public money is safeguarded and properly accounted for, and used economically, efficiently and effectively.

We are committed to providing you with a high quality service. If you have any concerns or are dissatisfied with any part of KPMG’s work, in the first instance you should 
contact Neil Hewitson, the engagement lead to the Authority, who will try to resolve your complaint. If you are dissatisfied with your response please contact the national lead 
partner f or all of  KPMG’s work under our contract with Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited, Andrew Sayers (0207 694 8981, andrew.sayers@kpmg.co.uk). After this, if 
y ou are still dissatisfied with how your complaint has been handled you can access PSAA’s complaints procedure by emailing generalenquiries@psaa.co.uk, by telephoning 
020 7072 7445 or by  writing to Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited, 3rd Floor, Local Government House, Smith Square, London, SW1P 3H.

P
age 11



3

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2018 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a 
Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Financial statements audit

Our f inancial statements audit follow s a four stage process:

— Financial statements audit planning

— Control evaluation 

— Substantive procedures

— Completion

Appendix 1 provides more detail on these stages.  This plan concentrates on the 
Financial Statements Audit Planning stage.

Value for Money

Our Value for Money (VFM) arrangements w ork follow s a f ive stage process:

— Risk assessment

— Links w ith other audit w ork

— Identif ication of signif icant VFM risks

— Review  w ork (by ourselves and other bodies)

— Conclude

— Report 

Page 10 provides more detail on these stages.  This plan concentrates on explaining 
the VFM approach for 2017/18.

1.  Introduction

Background and statutory responsibilities

This plan supplements our 2017/18 audit fee letter 2017/18 dated 25/04/17, w hich set 
out details of our appointment by PSAA.

Our statutory responsibilities and pow ers are set out in the Local Audit and 
Accountability Act 2014, the NAO’s Code of Audit Practice and the PSAA Statement 
of Responsibilities.

Our audit has tw o key objectives, requiring us to audit / review  and report on your:

— Financial statements:Providing an opinion on your accounts. We review  the 
Annual Governance Statement and Narrative Report and report by exception on 
these; and

— Use of resources: Concluding on the arrangements in place for securing 
economy, eff iciency and effectiveness in your use of resources (the value for 
money conclusion).

The audit planning process and risk assessment is an on-going process and the 
assessment and fees in this plan w ill be kept under review  and updated if necessary.  
Any change to our identif ied risks w ill be reporting to the Audit Committee. 

P
age 12



4

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2018 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a 
Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

2.  Financial statements audit planning

Financial statements audit planning

Our planning w ork takes place December to February 2018 and involves: 
determining materiality; risk assessment; identif ication of signif icant risks; 
consideration of potential fraud risks; identif ication of key account balances and 
related assertions, estimates and disclosures; consideration of Management’s 
use or experts; and issuing this plan to communicate our audit strategy.

Authority risk assessment

Professional standards require us to consider tw o standard risks.  We are not 
elaborating on these standard risks in this plan but consider them as a matter of 
course and w ill include any f indings arising from our w ork in our ISA 260 
Report.

— Management override of controls:Management is typically in a pow erful 
position to perpetrate fraud ow ing to its ability to manipulate accounting 
records and prepare fraudulent f inancial statements by overriding controls 
that otherw ise appear to be operating effectively. Our audit incorporates 
the risk of Management override as a default signif icant risk. In line w ith 
our methodology, w e carry out appropriate controls testing and substantive 
procedures, including over journal entries, accounting estimates and 
signif icant transactions that are outside the normal course of business, or 
are otherw ise unusual.

— Fraudulent revenue recognition:We do not consider this to be a 
signif icant risk for local authorities as there are limited incentives and 
opportunities to manipulate the w ay income is recognised. We therefore 
rebut this risk and do not incorporate specif ic w ork into our audit plan in this 
area over and above our standard fraud procedures.  

Management 
ov erride of 

controls

Revenue 
recognition

Remuneration 
disclosures

Lease 
accounting

Payroll

Key financial 
systems

Valuation of land 
and buildings

Impairment of 
PPE Bad debt 

provision

Financial 
Instruments

Pension liability

Completeness 
and accuracy of 

Provisions

Pension 
assets 

Code 
compliance

Key:  Signif icant risk  Other area of audit focus  Other areas considered

Telling the 
Story

Budgetary 
controls

Valuation of 
investment 
properties

Consolidation 
of subsidiaries 

Faster 
close 

P
age 13



5

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2018 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a 
Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Significant audit risks

Those risks requiring specif ic audit attention and procedures to address the likelihood of a material f inancial statement error in relation to the Authority.

2.  Financial statements audit planning

Valuation of land and buildings 

Risk: The Code requires that w here assets are subject to revaluation, their year end carrying value should reflect the appropriate fair value at that date. In 2016/17 the
Authority reported Property, Plant and Equipment w ith a total vale of £46.2m, w hich included other land and building assets totalling £40.6m

The Authority has adopted a rolling revaluation model w hich sees land and buildings revalued over a f ive year cycle.  As a result individual assets may not be revalued for 
four years.  This creates a risk that the carrying value of those assets not revalued in year differs materially from the year end fair value.  In addition, as the valuation is 
undertaken as at 1 April, there is a risk that the fair value is different at year end.

Approach: We w ill review  the approach that the Authority has adopted to assess the risk that assets not subject to valuation are materially misstated and consider the 
robustness of that approach.  We w ill assess the risk of the valuation changing materially in year. We w ill consider movement in market indices betw een revaluation dates 
and the year end in order to determine w hether these indicate that fair values have moved materially over that time.

In relation to those assets w hich have been revalued during the year w e w ill assess the valuer’s qualif ications, objectivity and independence to carry out such valuations and 
review  the methodology used (including testing the underlying data and assumptions).  

Valuation of investment properties

Risk: The Code requires that w here assets are subject to revaluation, their year end carrying value should reflect the appropriate fair value at that date. In 2016/17 the
Authority reported investment properties w ith a total value of £43.9m. 

As required by the CIPFA Code investment properties are revalued every year. The Authority exercises judgement in determining the fair value of these assets and the 
methods used to ensured the carrying values recorded each year reflect those fair values. There is also an inherent risk that some investment property assets may not have 
been revalued each year.  Given the materiality in value and the judgement involved in determining the fair value, including the use of external experts, w e consider this to be 
an area of signif icant risk.

Approach: We w ill understand the Authority’s approach to investment property valuation. We w ill assess the qualif ication, objectivity and independence of the Authority’s 
valuers w hen carrying out valuations.  We w ill review  the methodology used (including testing the underlying data and assumptions).  We w ill confirm that the accounting 
records have been updated in line w ith the valuer’s reports.

P
age 14



6

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2018 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a 
Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

2.  Financial statements audit planning

Pension liabilities

Risk: The net pension liability represents a material element of the Authority’s balance sheet.  The Authority is an admitted body of Surrey County Council Pension Fund, 
w hich had its last triennial valuation completed as at 31 March 2016.  This forms an integral basis of the valuation as at 31 March 2018.  Valuation of the Local Government 
Pension Scheme relies on assumptions, most notably actuarial assumptions, and actuarial methodology w hich results in the Authority’s overall valuation. 

There are f inancial assumptions and demographic assumptions used in the calculation of the Authority’s valuation, such as the discount rate, inf lation rates, mortality rates 
etc.  Assumptions should reflect the profile of the Authority’s employees and should be based on appropriate data.  The basis of the assumptions is derived on a consistent 
basis year to year, or updated to reflect any changes.  There is a risk that the assumptions and methodology used in the valuation of the Authority’s pension obligation are 
not reasonable.  This could have a material impact to net pension liability accounted for in the f inancial statements.

Approach: We w ill review  controls that the Authority has in place over the information sent directly to the Scheme Actuary.  We w ill liaise w ith the auditors of the Pension 
Fund to gain an understanding of the effectiveness of controls operated by the Pension Fund.  This w ill include consideration of the process and controls w ith respect to the 
assumptions used in the valuation.  We w ill evaluate the competency, objectivity and independence of Hymans Robertson. 

We w ill review  the appropriateness of key assumptions in the valuation, compare them to expected ranges, and consider the need to make use of a KPMG actuary.  We w ill 
review  the methodology applied in the valuation by Hymans Robertson.  In addition, w e w ill review  the overall Actuarial valuation and consider the disclosure implications in 
the f inancial statements. 

P
age 15



7

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2018 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a 
Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Authority other areas of audit focus

Those risks w ith less likelihood of giving rise to a material error but w hich are nevertheless w orthy of audit understanding.

2.  Financial statements audit planning

Consolidation of subsidiary investments

Risk: In 2016/17 The Authority has undertaken the purchase of the Jersey Unit Trust.  This is the second year the Authority w ill need to include this subsidiary as part of 
group accounts in their f inancial statements, and the f irst year in w hich a full year’s transactions of the Trust w ill be reflected in the group accounts.  The year end date for the 
subsidiary is 31 December, therefore the Authority w ill need to use management accounts to calculate the remaining disclosure to ensure it matches their year end of 31 
March 2018.

Approach: We w ill liaise w ith the Jersey Trust auditor and confirm their professional qualif ication, experience and independence. We w ill also issue them w ith group audit 
instructions to ensure that their audit is conducted to an acceptable level of scope and precision;

We w ill review  the Authority’s impairment review ;

We w ill compare the accounting transactions betw een the subsidiary and the Authority and confirm that any inter-group transactions have been corrected adjusted; and 

We w ill test the classif ication and accuracy of the investments in the Authority’s accounts and review  the presentation of the consolidated group accounts.

P
age 16



8

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2018 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a 
Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

2.  Financial statements audit planning

Faster close

Risk: In prior years, the Authority has been required to prepare draft f inancial statements by 30 June and then f inal signed accounts by 30 September.  For years ending on 
and after 31 March 2018 revised deadlines apply w hich require draft accounts by 31 May and f inal signed accounts by 31 July.

These changes represent a signif icant change to the timetable that the Authority has previously w orked to.  The time available to produce draft accounts has been reduced 
by one month and the overall time available for completion of both accounts production and audit is tw o months shorter than in prior years.

To meet the revised deadlines, the Authority may need to make greater use of accounting estimates.  In doing so, consideration w ill need to be given to ensuring that these 
estimates remain valid at the point of f inalising the f inancial statements.  There are logistical challenges that w ill need to be managed including:

— Ensuring that any third parties involved in the production of the accounts (including valuers, actuaries, subsidiaries and subsidiary auditors) are aw are of the revised 
deadlines and have made arrangements to provide the output of their w ork accordingly;

— Revising the closedow n and accounts production timetable to ensure that all w orking papers and supporting documentation are available at the start of the audit;

— Ensuring that the Audit Committee meeting schedules have been updated to permit signing in July; and

— Applying a shorter paper deadline to the July meeting of the Audit Committee meeting in order to accommodate the production of the f inal version of the accounts and 
our ISA 260 report.

In the event that the above areas are not effectively managed there is a risk that the audit w ill not be completed by the 31 July deadline. There is an increased likelihood that 
the Audit Certif icate (w hich confirms that all audit w ork for the year has been completed) may be issued separately at a later date if  w ork is still ongoing in relation to the 
Authority’s Whole of Government Accounts return.  This is not seen as a breach of deadlines.

Approach: We w ill continue to liaise w ith off icers in preparation for our audit to understand the steps the Authority is taking to meets the revised deadlines.  We w ill look to 
advance audit w ork into the interim visit to streamline the year end audit w ork.  Where there is greater reliance upon accounting estimates w e w ill consider the assumptions 
used and challenge the robustness of those estimates.

P
age 17



9

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2018 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a 
Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

2.  Financial statements audit planning

In the context of the Group w e propose that an individual difference could normally be 
considered to be clearly trivial if  it is less than £45K.  

In the context of the Authority w e propose that an individual difference could normally 
be considered to be clearly trivial if  it is less than £45K.  

If  Management has corrected material misstatements identif ied during the audit, w e 
w ill consider w hether those corrections should be communicated to Audit Committee 
to assist it in fulf illing its governance responsibilities.

Group audit 

In addition to the Authority w e deem the follow ing subsidiaries to be signif icant in the 
context of the group audit: Jersey Property Unit Trust

To support our audit w ork on the group accounts, w e seek to place reliance on the 
w ork of Pw C w ho are the auditors to this subsidiaries. We w ill liaise w ith them in 
order to confirm that their programme of w ork is adequate for our purposes and they 
satisfy professional requirements.

We w ill report the follow ing matters in our Report to those charged w ith Governance:

■ Deficiencies in the system of internal control or instances of fraud w hich the 
subsidiary auditors identify;

■ Limitations on the group audit, for example, w here the our access to information 
may have been restricted; and

■ Instances w here our evaluation of the w ork the subsidiary auditors gives rise
to concern about the quality of that auditor’s w ork.

Materiality

We are required to plan our audit to determine w ith reasonable confidence w hether or 
not the f inancial statements are free from material misstatement.  An omission or 
misstatement is regarded as material if  it w ould reasonably influence the user of 
f inancial statements.  This therefore involves an assessment of the qualitative and 
quantitative nature of omissions and misstatements.  Generally, w e w ould not consider 
differences in opinion in respect of areas of judgement to represent ‘misstatements’ 
unless the application of that judgement results in a f inancial amount falling outside of 
a range w hich w e consider to be acceptable.

For the Group materiality for planning purposes has been set at £900k w hich equates 
to 1.9% of 2016/17 group expenditure.  The threshold above w hich individual errors 
are reported to Audit Committee is £45K.

For the Authority materiality for planning purposes has been set at £900k w hich 
equates to 2% of 2016/17 Authority expenditure. The threshold above w hich individual 
errors are reported to Audit Committee is £45K.

Reporting to the Audit Committee

Whilst our audit procedures are designed to identify misstatements w hich are material 
to our opinion on the f inancial statements as a w hole, w e nevertheless report to the 
Audit Committee any unadjusted misstatements of lesser amounts to the extent that 
these are identif ied by our audit w ork.

Under ISA 260(UK&I) ‘Communication w ith those charged w ith governance’, w e are 
obliged to report uncorrected omissions or misstatements other than those w hich are 
‘clearly trivial’ to those charged w ith governance. 

ISA 260 (UK&I) defines ‘clearly trivial’ as matters that are clearly inconsequential, 
w hether taken individually or in aggregate and w hether judged by any quantitative or 
qualitative criteria.

P
age 18



10

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2018 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a 
Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

3.  Value for money arrangements work

For our value for money 
conclusion we are 
required to work to the 
NAO Code of Audit 
Practice (issued in 2015 
after the enactment of the 
Local Audit and 
Accountability Act 2014).
Our approach to VFM 
work follows the NAO’s 
new guidance that was 
first introduced in 2015-16, 
is risk based and targets 
audit effort on the areas of 
greatest audit risk. 
We have planned our audit 
to draw on our past 
experience of delivering 
this conclusion and have 
updated our approach as 
necessary. We will also 
consider reports from 
your regulators and 
review agencies.  

The Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 requires auditors of NHS Bodies to be satisf ied that the organisation “has made proper 
arrangements for securing economy, eff iciency and effectiveness in its Value for Money”. This is supported by the Code of Audit Practice, 
published by the NAO in April 2015, w hich requires auditors to “take into account their know ledge of the relevant local sector as a w hole, and 
the audited body specif ically, to identify any risks that, in the auditor’s judgement, have the potential to cause the auditor to reach an 
inappropriate conclusion on the audited body’s arrangements.”

The VFM process is show n in the diagram below :

Overall criterion: In all significant respects, the audited body had proper arrangements to ensure it took properly informed decisions and 
deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people.

Informed decision making Sustainable resource deployment Working w ith partner and third parties

VFM audit risk 
assessment

Financial 
statements and 
other audit w ork

Identif ication of 
signif icant 

VFM risks (if  
any)

Conclude on 
arrangements 

to secure 
VFM

No further w ork required

Assessment of w ork by 
other review  agencies

Specif ic local risk based 
w ork

V
FM

 conclusion

Continually re-assess potential VFM risks

We have completed our initial VfM risk assessment and have identif ied a signif icant risk for the VfM conclusion – see overleaf.  

P
age 19



11

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2018 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a 
Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

3.  Value for money arrangements work

VFM significant risk

Financial Resilience

Risk: Local Authorities are subject to an increasingly challenged f inancial regime, w ith reduced funding from Central Government, w hilst having to maintain a statutory and 
quality level of services to local residents.

As part of its 2017/18 budget setting process, the Authority identif ied the need to make savings of £6.3m. The budget for 2017/18 is £3.1m less than the budget for 2016/17. 
The current forecast show s that the Authority w ill deliver break even and meet its budget of £11.3m for 2017/18.

The Authority’s budget for 2018/19 w as approved at the Council meeting on 21 February 2018 and show s an increase of £561k on prior year.

Approach: We w ill review  overall management arrangements that the Authority has for managing its f inancial position. This w ill include the processes to maintain a robust 
Medium Term Financial Strategy, ongoing monitoring of the annual budget, responsiveness to increasing costs of demand led services and changes in funding allocations 
the governance arrangements of how  the f igures are reported through to Cabinet. 

P
age 20



12

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2018 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a 
Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

4.  Other matters 

Whole of government accounts (WGA)

We are required to review  your WGA consolidation and undertake the w ork specif ied under the approach that is agreed w ith HM Treasury and the National Audit Off ice. 
Deadlines for production of the pack and the specif ied approach for 2017/18 have not yet been confirmed

Elector challenge

The Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 gives electors certain rights. These are: the right to inspect the accounts; the right to ask the auditor questions about the accounts; 
and the right to object to the accounts.  As a result of these rights, in particular the right to object to the accounts, w e may need to undertake additional w ork to form our decision 
on the elector's objection.  The additional w ork could range from a small piece w here w e interview  an off icer and review  evidence to form our decision to a more detailed piece 
w here w e have to interview  a range of off icers, review  signif icant amounts of evidence and seek legal representations on the issues raised.  Costs incurred responding to 
questions or objections raised by electors is not part of the fee.  This w ork w ill be charged in accordance w ith PSAA's fee scales.

Our audit team

Your audit team has been draw n from our specialist public sector assurance department and is led by tw o key members of staff:
— Neil Hewitson: your Director has overall responsibility for the quality of the KPMG audit w ork and is the contact point w ithin KPMG for the Audit Committee, the Chief 

Executive and Finance Director.
— Satinder Jas: your Manager is responsible for delivery of all our audit w ork. He w ill manage the completion of the different elements of our w ork, ensuring that they are 

coordinated and delivered in an effective manner.
The core audit team w ill be assisted by other KPMG staff, such as risk, tax, clinical or information specialists as necessary to deliver the plan.
Reporting and communication 

Reporting is a key part of the audit process, not only in communicating the audit f indings for the year, but in ensuring that the audit team is accountable to you in addressing the 
issues identif ied as part of the audit strategy.  Throughout the year w e w ill communicate w ith you through meetings w ith the f inance team and the Audit Committee.  Our 
communication outputs are included in Appendix 1.

Independence and objectivity

Auditors are required to be independent and objective. Appendix 2 provides more details of our confirmation of independence and objectivity.

P
age 21



13

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2018 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a 
Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

4.  Other matters 

Audit fee

Our Audit Fee Letter 2017/2018 presented to you on 25 April 2017 f irst set out our fees for the 2017/2018 audit.  This letter also set out our assumptions.  We have not 
considered it necessary to seek approval for any changes to the agreed fees at this stage. 

Should there be a need to charge additional audit fees then this w ill be agreed w ith the S151 Officer and PSAA.  If  such a variation is agreed, w e w ill report that to you in due 
course. 

Our fee for the 2017/18 audit is £45,905* (£47,926 2016/2017).  This is in line w ith the scale fees published by PSAA and includes an additional £4,005 aw aiting reconfirmation 
from the PSAA for the audit of the group accounts.  

Grants and claims work

We undertake other grants and claims w ork for the Authority that does not fall under the PSAA arrangements:

• Housing benefits grant claim: This audit is planned for August 2018.  Our fee for this w ork is £11,411 (£8,430 in 2016/17).

Public interest reporting

In auditing the accounts as your auditor w e must consider w hether, in the public interest, w e should make a report on any matters coming to our notice in the course of our audit, 
in order for it to be considered by Members or bought to the attention of the public; and w hether the public interest requires any such matter to be made the subject of an 
immediate report rather than at completion of the audit. 

At this stage there are no matters that w e w ish to report.

P
age 22



14

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2018 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a 
Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Appendix 1: Key elements of our financial statements audit approach

CompletionPlanning Control ev aluation Substantiv e testing

C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
n

A
ud

it 
w

or
kf

lo
w

Continuous communication between you and us

Initial planning meetings and 
risk assessment

Audit strategy and plan Annual Audit LetterISA 260 (UK&I) Report

Interim audit Year end audit of financial 
statements and annual report

Sign audit 
opinion

■ Perform risk assessment 
procedures and identify risks

■ Determine audit strategy

■ Determine planned audit 
approach

■ Understand accounting and reporting 
activities

■ Evaluate design and implementation of 
selected controls

■ Test operating effectiveness of selected 
controls

■ Assess control risk and risk of the accounts 
being misstated

■ Plan substantive procedures

■ Perform substantive procedures

■ Consider if  audit evidence is 
suff icient and appropriate

■ Perform completion 
procedures

■ Perform overall 
evaluation

■ Form an audit opinion

■ Audit Committee 
reporting

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep

P
age 23



15

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2018 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a 
Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Appendix 2: Independence and objectivity requirements

ASSESSMENT OF OUR OBJECTIVITY AND INDEPENDENCE AS AUDITOR OF SURREY HEATH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Professional ethical standards require us to provide to you at the planning stage of the audit a w ritten disclosure of relationships (including the provision of non-audit services) 
that bear on KPMG LLP’s objectivity and independence, the threats to KPMG LLP’s independence that these create, any safeguards that have been put in place and w hy they 
address such threats, together w ith any other information necessary to enable KPMG LLP’s objectivity and independence to be assessed. 

In considering issues of independence and objectivity w e consider relevant professional, regulatory and legal requirements and guidance, including the provisions of the Code of 
Audit Practice, the provisions of Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd’s (‘PSAA’s’) Terms of Appointment relating to independence and the requirements of the FRC Ethical 
Standard  and General Guidance Supporting Local Audit (Auditor General Guidance 1 – AGN01) issued by the National Audit Off ice (‘NAO’).

This Appendix is intended to comply w ith this requirement and facilitate a subsequent discussion w ith you on audit independence and addresses: General procedures to 
safeguard independence and objectivity; Breaches of applicable ethical standards; Independence and objectivity considerations relating to the provision of non-audit services; 
and Independence and objectivity considerations relating to other matters.

General procedures to safeguard independence and objectivity

KPMG LLP is committed to being and being seen to be independent.  As part of our ethics and independence policies, all KPMG LLP partners, Audit Directors and staff annually 
confirm their compliance w ith our ethics and independence policies and procedures. Our ethics and independence policies and procedures are fully consistent w ith the 
requirements of the FRC Ethical Standard.  As a result w e have underlying safeguards in place to maintain independence through: Instilling professional values; 
Communications; Internal accountability; Risk management; and Independent review s.

We are satisf ied that our general procedures support our independence and objectivity.

Confirmation of audit independence

We confirm that as of the date of this report, in our professional judgment, KPMG LLP is independent w ithin the meaning of regulatory and professional requirements and the 
objectivity of the Audit Director and audit staff is not impaired. 

This report is intended solely for the information of the Audit Committee of the authority and should not be used for any other purposes.

We w ould be very happy to discuss the matters identif ied above (or any other matters relating to our objectivity and independence) should you w ish to do so.

P
age 24



16

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2018 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a 
Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Appendix 3: Quality framework 

Audit quality is at the core of everything w e do at KPMG and w e believe that it is not just about reaching the right opinion, but how  w e reach that opinion.  To ensure that every 
partner and employee concentrates on the fundamental skills and behaviours required to deliver an appropriate and independent opinion, w e have developed our global Audit 

Quality Framew ork

- Comprehensive effective monitoring processes
- Proactive identification of emerging risks and 

opportunities to improve quality and provide insights
- Obtain feedback from key stakeholders
- Evaluate and appropriately respond to feedback and 

findings Strateg
y

Interim 
fieldwor

k

Statutory 
reporting

Debrie
f

- Professional judgement and scepticism 
- Direction, supervision and review
- Ongoing mentoring and on the job coaching
- Critical assessment of audit evidence
- Appropriately supported and documented conclusions
- Relationships built on mutual respect
- Insightful, open and honest two way communications

- Technical training and support
- Accreditation and licensing 
- Access to specialist networks
- Consultation processes
- Business understanding and industry knowledge
- Capacity to deliver valued insights

- Select clients within risk tolerance
- Manage audit responses to risk
- Robust client and engagement acceptance and 

continuance processes
- Client portfolio management

- Recruitment, promotion, retention
- Development of core competencies, skil ls and 

personal qualities
- Recognition and reward for quality work
- Capacity and resource management 
- Assignment of team members and specialists 

- KPMG Audit and Risk Management Manuals
- Audit technology tools, templates and guidance
- Independence policies

Commitment to 
continuous 

improv ement–

Association 
with the right 

clients

Clear standards 
and robust audit 

tools

Recruitment, 
dev elopment and 

assignment of 
appropriately 

qualified personnel

Commitment 
to technical 
excellence 

and quality serv ice 
deliv ery

Performance of 
effectiv e and 

efficient audits

P
age 25



Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2018 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a 
member f irm of the KPMG netw ork of independent member 
f irms aff iliated w ith KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG 
International”), a Sw iss entity. All rights reserved.

This report is addressed to the Authority and has been prepared for the sole use of the 
Authority. We take no responsibil ity to any member of staff acting in their individual 
capacities, or to third parties. We draw your attention to the Statement of Responsibil ities of 
auditors and audited bodies, which is available on Public Sector Audit Appointment’s website 
(www.psaa.co.uk).

External auditors do not act as a substitute for the audited body’s own responsibil ity for 
putting in place proper arrangements to ensure that public business is conducted in 
accordance with the law and proper standards, and that public money is safeguarded and 
properly accounted for, and used economically, efficiently and effectively.

We are committed to providing you with a high quality service. If you have any concerns or 
are dissatisfied with any part of KPMG’s work, in the first instance you should contact Neil 
Hewitson, the engagement lead to the Authority, who will try to resolve your complaint. If you 
are dissatisfied with your response please contact the national lead partner for all of KPMG’s 
work under our contract with Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited, Andrew Sayers, by 
email to Andrew.Sayers@kpmg.co.uk.  After this, if you are sti l l  dissatisfied with how your 
complaint has been handled you can access PSAA’s complaints procedure by emailing 
generalenquiries@psaa.co.ukby telephoning 020 7072 7445 or by writing to Public Sector 
Audit Appointments Limited, 3rd Floor, Local Government House, Smith Square, London, 
SW1P 3HZ.

P
age 26

https://www.linkedin.com/company/kpmg-advisory
https://www.linkedin.com/company/kpmg-advisory
https://plus.google.com/111087034030305010189
https://plus.google.com/111087034030305010189
https://twitter.com/kpmguk
https://twitter.com/kpmguk
https://www.youtube.com/user/KPMGUK
https://www.youtube.com/user/KPMGUK
mailto:Andrew.Sayers@kpmg.co.uk
mailto:generalenquiries@psaa.co.uk


AGENDA\

Portfolio Corporate CERTIFICATION OF CLAIMS AND 
RETURNS – ANNUAL REPORT 2016/17

Ward(s) 
Affected:

n/a

Purpose

To update Members on the outcome of the certifications of claims and returns 
for Housing Benefit for 2016/17

Background

1. The Council’s auditors KPMG are required to certify the accuracy of the 
Council’s claims and returns for Housing Benefit.

2. The purpose of this is to ensure that Benefit payments have been 
calculated correctly and then reclaimed from Government in line with 
regulations

Outcome

3. The Auditors have given an unqualified report for the return and their 
audit report is attached. They are not recommending any changes to 
processes or procedures.

Resource Implications

4. None other than audit fees. 

Recommendation

5. Members are asked to note the report as attached and comment as 
appropriate. 

Annex: 

Annex A – Certification of Claims audit report 2016/17

Report Author:            Kelvin Menon – Executive Head – Finance 
                                    kelvin.menon@surreyheath.gov.uk

Service Head:             Kelvin Menon – Executive Head – Finance 
                                    kelvin.menon@surreyheath.gov.uk

Page 27

Agenda Item 5 

mailto:kelvin.menon@surreyheath.gov.uk
mailto:kelvin.menon@surreyheath.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Page 29

KatharineS_1
Typewriter
ANNEX 1



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 31

KatharineS_2
Typewriter
ANNEX 2



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Portfolio FinanceInternal Audit Report 

Ward(s) Affected: n/a

Purpose

To consider and approve the 2018-19 Annual Plan for the Internal Audit service

Background 

1. The Accounts and Audit Regulations require local authorities to maintain an 
adequate and effective system of internal audit of accounting records and of 
the system of internal control, in accordance with internal audit Standards.  An 
Annual Plan for Internal Audit demonstrates how the Council will fulfil this 
requirement in accordance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards. 

The Annual Plan
 
2. The Annual Plan is a proposed work programme for the Internal Audit service 

for the forthcoming year. A copy of the Plan is attached at Annex A, and 
covers the period April 2018 to March 2019. The Plan is a combination of 
reviews that are conducted every year, together with those audits that are 
undertaken less regularly such as ad hoc pieces of work, or audits conducted 
every 3 years. 

3. The Plan is based on the audit Strategic Plan, a medium term plan covering 3 
years which is agreed at Members and senior officer level. The current 3 year 
plan expires in 2020.  

Resourcing

4. A total number of 430 working days will be required to deliver next year’s plan, 
excluding days required to cover annual leave, bank holidays and staff 
training.  There are currently two FTE members of the audit team, a fully 
qualified Senior Auditor and a part qualified auditor.  Additional resources may 
be brought in when necessary. 

Requirements of External Audit 

5. The Annual Plan includes a range of audits that are required by the Council’s 
external auditors who place reliance on the work undertaken by Internal Audit 
as part of their audit of the Council’s set of accounts. Without this reliance, the 
external auditors reserve the right to re-perform additional audit testing 
themselves over and above their normal work. This may lead to a financial 
cost to the Council. 

Page 43

Agenda Item 6 



6. Included within the Plan is an element for contingency and management 
advice, which have been included to assist senior management with any 
unscheduled pieces of work that crop up mid-year.  

 
Monitoring and reporting

7. Progress against the Annual Plan and performance of the audit team is 
monitored during the year and reported to the Chief Executive, the relevant 
Executive Head and the Section 151 Officer.  Material changes to the plan will 
be discussed and agreed in advance with the Executive Head and the Section 
151 Officer as necessary. 

8. Significant risks and findings identified by Internal Audit during the course of 
the year will be brought to the attention of the Chief Executive, the Section 
151 Officer and senior management, and reported to Audit & Standards 
committee.  Significant risks are also brought to the attention of the Council’s 
Corporate Risk Management Group and considered for inclusion in the 
Corporate Risk Register, which is updated on an annual basis.   Internal Audit 
recommendations are followed up and any that have not been implemented or 
discharged in line with agreed timescales are reported to senior management 
and the Audit & Standards committee. 

Corporate Plan 

9. The work of Internal Audit supports the Council’s Corporate Annual Plan and 
helps to meet its corporate objectives and key priorities. The Internal Audit 
service is also an integral part of the Council’s performance management 
system. 

Overdue Audit Recommendations

10. An exercise to review the status of internal audit recommendations is carried 
out each quarter, with essential recommendations remaining overdue without 
having been granted an extension being reported to committee every 6 
months. As at March 2018 there were no essential outstanding 
recommendations due. 

Resource implications 

11. There are no resource implications arising from this report. 

Recommendation

12.  Members are asked to note and agree the internal audit Annual Plan for 
2018-19. 

       
Annex:   Annual Plan for 2018-19 

Background Papers:   None 

Page 44



Report Author: Alex Middleton 01276 707303
e-mail: alex.middleton@surreyheath.gov.uk

Executive Head:  Louise Livingston 01276 707403
e-mail: louise.livingston@surreyheath.gov.uk

Page 45



This page is intentionally left blank



ANNEX A 

SURREY HEATH BOROUGH COUNCIL 

INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICE 

ANNUAL PLAN 2018-19

BUSINESS ACTIVITY IA PLAN ALLOCATION CYCLE LAST AUDITED

 FUNDAMENTAL SYSTEMS 

Debtors and Income 8 days annual 17/18

Creditors and Expenditure 8 days annual 17/18

Main Accounting system 8 days annual 17/18

Housing Benefits 8 days annual 17/18

Revenues 8 days annual 17/18     

Treasury Management 8 days annual 17/18  

Cash and Bank 8 days annual 17/18

Capital Accounting 8 days annual 17/18

  

CORPORATE 

Democratic Services & Elections 11 days election period 16/17  

Media & Marketing 10 days every 3 to 4 years N/A 

COMMUNITY 

Waste Management 20 days annual 16/17

Emergency Planning, Business Continuity 10 days annual 17/18     

Centres for Older people 12 days every 3 years 15/16

BUSINESS 

Parking 15 days annual 17/18   

Camberley Theatre 15 days annual 17/18

Leisure Centres 15 days every 2 to 3 years 13/14

Event Management 15 days annual 17/18  

  

TRANSFORMATION  

ICT 20 days annual 17/18

Information Management/GDPR/FOA 15 days every 2 to 3 years 17/18   

Payroll 8 days annual 17/18

Key Projects /Partnerships 15 days annual 16/17   

 

REGULATORY  

Private Sector Housing - inc. DFGs 15 days every 3 years 14/15

Family Support 15 days every 3 years new 

Land Charges 10 days every 3 to 5 years 10/11  

FINANCE   

Fraud Prevention & Detection 10 days annual 17/18  

Insurance 10 days every 3 years 15/16

LEGAL & PROPERTY 

Estate Management 15 days annual 16/17

CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

Investment & Development 15 days annual new 

TOTAL AUDIT DAYS 335

 

PLUS:

CONTINGENCY 30

MANAGEMENT AND COMMITTEE 15

ADVICE, CONSULTANCY, WORKING GROUPS 20

TEAM SUPERVISION, PLANNING 30

TOTAL DAYS REQUIRED TO COMPLETE PLAN 430

Page 47



This page is intentionally left blank



Portfolio Finance ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

Ward(s) Affected: n/a

Purpose
The purpose of this report is to advise the Committee of the draft of the Annual Corporate 
Governance statement which will form part of the 2017/2018 annual accounts and will be 
signed by the Leader of the Council and the Chief Executive.  

1. Background

1.1 The Council is required to produce an Annual Governance Statement as part 
of the final accounts for the financial year and statement is signed by the 
Leader of the Council and the Chief Executive. The draft Statement is 
attached at Annex A to this report.

1.2 The Statement informs stakeholders of the Governance arrangements within 
the Council, addresses the key issues for the year and picks up those 
considered in the previous year.

1.3 The document is informed by the annual work of the Executive, the Corporate 
Management Team, the Internal Audit team, the Council’s risk process and 
the general control systems in place within the Council. It provides a review of 
the Council’s governance arrangements in accordance with the guidance 
issued by CIPFA.

2.  Resource Implications

2.1 There are no resource implications. 

3.  Options

3.1 The document is a statutory requirement. 

4.  Supporting Information

4.1 The draft document is attached at Annex A.

5. Officer Comments 

5.1 The document has been reviewed by the Council’s Section 151 Officer. 

6. Recommendation 

6.1. The Standards and Audit Committee is advised to NOTE and comment, if 
appropriate, to the Executive on the draft of the Annual Governance 
Statement.

Page 49

Agenda Item 7 



Annexes Annual Governance Statement

Background Papers None

Author/Contact Details Karen Limmer  - Head of Legal Services
Karen.limmer@surreyheath.gov.uk

Page 50



ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2017/18

INTRODUCTION
Local authorities are statutorily required to review their governance arrangements at 
least once a year. Preparation and publication of an Annual Governance Statement 
in accordance with the CIPFA/SoLACE Delivering Good Governance in Local 
Government Framework (2016) (the Framework) fulfils this requirement. The 
Framework requires local authorities to be responsible for ensuring that: their 
business is conducted in accordance with all relevant laws and regulations; public 
money is safeguarded and properly accounted for; and resources are used 
economically, efficiently and effectively to achieve agreed priorities which benefit 
local people. The Framework also expects that local authorities will put in place 
proper arrangements for the governance of their affairs which facilitate the effective 
exercise of functions and ensure that the responsibilities set out above are being 
met.

KEY ELEMENTS OF THE COUNCIL’S GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK

                                                                

SURREY HEATH 
GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK

Council, Executive and Leader
 Provides leadership, develops and 

sets policy
 Develops and sets policy to deliver 

the Council’s Key Priorities
 Develops and sets policy to drive 

growth within the borough

Decision Making and Risk 
Management
 All Meetings held in public
 All decisions and papers available on 

the Council’s website
 Risks are considered as a standard 

part of every Executive and Council 
decision

 Corporate risks are identified and 
mitigation put in place

Scrutiny and Review
 Scrutiny committees can review and 

challenge decisions
 Performance and Finance Committee 

monitors performance, value for 
money and service delivery

 Executive working groups 
recommend policy to the Executive

 The public can submit petitions for 
consideration by Executive and 
Council

 Executive members appear at 
scrutiny committees to answer 
questions

Corporate Management Team
 Head of Paid Service is the CEX 

and is responsible for all council 
staff and leads the CMT

 All Executive Heads and Heads of 
Service are members of CMT

 The Sec 151 officer is a member 
of CMT and is responsible for 
safeguarding the Council’s 
finances

 The Monitoring Officer is a 
member of CMT and is 
responsible for ensuring legality 
and maintaining standards of 
public conduct

ANNEX

Page 51



HOW WE COMPLY WITH THE CIPFA/SOLACE FRAMEWORK

The Council has approved and adopted a Code of Corporate Governance together 
with a number of other strategies and processes, such as financial regulations, 
codes of conduct etc. which strengthen corporate governance.

Set out below is how the Council has complied with the seven principles set out in 
the CIPFA/SoLACE Framework during 2017/18. 

PRINCIPLE A
Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, 
and respecting the rule of law

The Council has a Code of Conduct for elected Members, and a Code of Corporate 
Governance which provides guidance for Officers and Members on expected 
standards of behaviours to ensure integrity. Members and officers receive training in 
Code of Conduct and behaviour issues. The Audit and Standards Committee and 
Monitoring Officer ensure that the Code of Conduct is up to date and investigate any 
suspected breaches. 

All officers and Members must also sign up to the Council’s Anti- Fraud and 
Corruption Policy and declare any interests they may have or gifts they have 
received which are then recorded in a Register. The Whistleblowing Policy provides 
protection for individuals to raise concerns in confidence about suspect behaviour 
and ensures that any concerns raised are properly investigated. The policy is 
available on the website and forms part of the Council’s induction process. A Bribery 
Policy is also in place. The Council has an internal corporate enforcement team who 
will investigate any suspected fraud or corruption and report their findings directly to 
the Monitoring Officer for action to be taken if required.

All Council decisions have to consider legal implications which are included as a 
standard paragraph in the report being considered. Senior officers and other key 
post holders receive support from Legal Services in this regard and if specialist legal 
advice is required then the Council will engage external advisers. The Section 151 
and Monitoring Officers have specific responsibility for ensuring legality, for 
investigating any suspected instances of failure to comply with legal requirements, 
and for reporting any such instances to members.

The Council has a strong internal audit function that audits all of the Council’s 
functions on a cyclical basis. It reports its findings to the Corporate Management 
Team and the Audit and Standards Committee on a regular basis. It also has a direct 
reporting line to the Chief Executive on matters requiring immediate action. 

The Council has an Equality Strategy as well as a staff Equality Action Group which 
champions equalities throughout the organisation. There is also a Member Equality 
Working Group looking at ways to engage the community.

Page 52



PRINCIPLE B
Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement

All meetings are open to the public and all agenda papers, reports and decisions 
made by the Council are published on the Council’s website together with details of 
forthcoming consultation exercises, surveys and, public meetings, except those 
determined as exempt from publication. 

The Council’s Constitution sets out how it engages with stakeholders and has 
representation on the governing bodies of external organisations including the local 
housing association, CCG, and other joint bodies. 

This year the Council continued with its “Talk Surrey Heath” webcast where 
residents are able to ask questions of the Leader, Executive Members, Service 
Heads and the Chief Executive via a live webcast on different topics during the year. 
Topics discussed include the Town Centre, Annual Plan, Planning, changes to the 
Refuse Service and Finance.

The Council holds two business breakfasts during the year to present the work of the 
Council and to discuss matters of common interest to local businesses. The Council 
sends every household a copy of the quarterly magazine – Heathscene – which 
includes articles of interest affecting local residents. The Council also utilises various 
online communication channels including Twitter, Instagram, Facebook, LinkedIn 
and YouTube. More specific e-bulletins and publications are created for various 
communities of interest, such as businesses, theatre users etc as well as for 
changes in services such as the new waste collection arrangements.

PRINCIPLES C AND D
Defining, optimising and achieving outcomes

This year the Council has in place a five year strategy covering 2017 to 2022 based 
around 4 themes. These are People, Place, Prosperity and Performance. For each 
of these themes there are high level objectives and underneath are the priorities. A 
new Annual Plan is approved by Members each year which sets out the key targets 
which will be delivered for the year to further the priorities. These targets feed 
through in to project plans and individual staff and team objectives. This is to ensure 
that specific outcomes in relation to the five year strategy are defined for key service 
areas, can be delivered and monitored. 

Each service also plans out how it will deliver the outcomes relevant to its area of 
work in the context of the agreed budget for the year ahead. Services challenge 
each other through the Corporate Management Team to ensure their budgets deliver 
value for money.

To ensure that the Council continues to deliver sustainable social and environmental 
benefits, there is an Economic Development Plan, as well as a series of more 
specific strategies. These include the Health and Well Being Strategy, Housing 
Strategy, Drainage Strategy and the Air Quality Strategy.

Page 53



All service decisions are subject to scrutiny by Executive which includes a review of 
options and risks by officers and Members. Key performance indicators are in place 
for all services and these are reported bi annually, together with performance against 
the Annual Plan, to members for discussion and potential intervention where 
expected performance is not being achieved.

The Council has been through a programme of significant transformation over the 
last few years and continues to review ways of working in order to increase 
efficiency, reduce costs and adapt to changing legislative requirements. The Council 
has invested in new technology to enable services to work more efficiently. During 
the year a number of IT applications were upgraded and the Council started to 
introduce Okta (single sign on) and “box” for the storage of its documents in order to 
support collaborative working and enable agile working. 

The Council also works closely at all levels with other authorities to learn and 
understand how best practice has been delivered elsewhere. 

PRINCIPLE E
Developing capacity and capability
A key element of the Council’s service planning is to maximise the investment in staff 
through training to enhance the qualifications and skills to enable them to fulfil their 
roles and potentially progress within the organisation. Several staff have obtained 
qualifications through this route and have progressed as a result. The Council has 
maintained its training budget despite reductions in other areas to ensure that it can 
develop staff for the future and deal with shortages in key areas such as planning. 
Training Requirements are reviewed for all staff as part of their annual appraisal 
which highlights areas of development required to enable them to fulfil their 
objectives for that year. The Council provides mandatory training for all staff where 
appropriate. In the current year, training on the new General Data Protection 
Regulations (GDPR), in preparation for its introduction on 25 May 2018, was made 
mandatory for all staff. The Council is also a member of the Surrey Learn 
Partnership which offers cost effective personal skills training in areas such as 
management skills, communication skills and personal effectiveness on a Surrey 
wide basis. Members are also able to access a range of training opportunities, some 
of which are mandatory i.e. planning for members of those committees. The Council 
has a full induction programme for staff and members. 

During the year, two more apprentices were appointed, to add to those already in 
place, whom the Council are supporting through training and experience. This is 
seen as a key route to attract staff to the Council and to enable it to address skill 
shortages in the future. The Council operates a flexible working policy for employees 
to enable them to achieve a positive work life balance. In addition investment has 
been made in technology to enable agile working and thereby increase productivity 
for services such as Planning and Building Control. 

The Council works across a broad set of partnerships and collaborative 
arrangements, and uses commissioning and procurement processes to maximise 
capacity by delivering services in the most effective and efficient way. Surrey Heath 
is the lead authority in a collaborative partnership of four authorities which are 

Page 54



delivering waste collection under a single contract. Discussions are on-going to 
extend this arrangement to other Councils in Surrey.  The Council has also extended 
its joint arrangements with other Councils in areas such as Environmental Health 
and Community Services.

PRINCIPLE F
Managing risks and performance
The Risk Management Strategy sets out the Council’s approach to identifying and 
controlling risk. A Corporate Risk Register is maintained at a corporate level with 
significant risks reported to CMT and to the Performance and Finance Committee 
each year. Progress against the Annual Plan objectives and KPI’s are reported bi-
annually to members. The Council has in place Financial Regulations, which set out 
expected processes and internal controls, which are monitored on a regular basis. 

The internal audit team provide regular reports on the effective operation of these 
controls together with an annual assessment of the overall control environment. The 
Council has a dedicated Information Governance Manager responsible for 
information governance, security and records management. The annually reviewed 
Information Security Policy governs how information should be securely handled, 
transmitted, stored and maintained. All staff were required to attend mandatory 
training on the new General Data Protection Regulations and a new Data Protection 
Officer has also been appointed.  Further work is planned during the coming months 
to ensure compliance with the GDPR and the new Data Protection Act, following 
guidance issued by the Information Commissioner’s Office. Information Management 
is recorded on the Corporate Risk Register and with the increase in potential fines 
the initial impact is high but is reduced to low with the Council’s commitment to 
management of information.

The Council recognises that it does not have the expertise internally in all matters 
and engages external advisors as appropriate for example in relation to the Town 
Centre, Regeneration Development and Planning Appeals.

The Council submits reports on its performance in complaints, planning, 
environmental protection and a number of other areas to Members each year for 
discussion and comment.

The Council invested in property in the town centre and is bringing forward plans to 
regenerate both the Square shopping centre and the London Road Development 
opportunity. It recognises that this carries a significant level of commercial and 
financial risk and it has appointed professional agents and legal advisers to manage 
and advise on these areas.   

PRINCIPLE G
Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and accountability
All Council agendas and supporting information, unless exempt, set out the reasons 
for the decisions made. The Council works to provide clear and accurate information, 
and has developed both its website and the format of Council reports to improve 
transparency and accessibility. The Council reports performance against targets, its 
Annual Plan objectives and financial budgets on a regular basis. All overdue 

Page 55



essential audit recommendations are reported to the CMT and the Audit and 
Standards Committee, to ensure that officers undertake any follow up actions as 
appropriate. 

REVIEW OF EFFECTIVENESS
The Council uses a number of ways to review and assess the effectiveness of its 
governance arrangements. These are set out below:

Assurance from Internal and External Audit

One of the key assurance statements the Council receives each year is the annual 
report from Internal Audit and the opinion of the Internal Audit Manager (Section 151 
Officer). A total of 25 internal audits have been carried out in the year to date, or are 
in the process of being carried out. 23 of these are from the audit annual plan as well 
as a further 2 unscheduled reviews. These have included individual audits of 
housing, development control, health and safety and fraud which are not reviewed 
every year. All final audit reports for the financial year to date have been given a 
substantial level of assurance, there have been no limited assurance reports issued. 

In the same time period, Internal Audit have raised 83 audit recommendations, 5 of 
which were classified as essential, and the Internal Audit team regularly monitors all 
recommendations due to ensure they are being actioned by managers on time. At 
the time of writing this statement, there were no essential recommendations overdue 
which had not been actioned. 

The internal auditors’ opinion for 2017/18 is that the Council’s internal control 
environment and systems of internal control in the areas audited were adequate and 
effective. 

 
Essential issues reported in 2017/18 Agreed action
Operation of the new Glide parking app. 

Service needs to improve the billing of its 
new parking payment systems to ensure 
VAT is correct and Council receives 
parking income more promptly. 

Service company to be billed and income 
to be received in full and accounted for in 
current year’s set of accounts. 

Homelessness Reduction Action 2017.

A risk assessment has been produced in 
respect of the Homelessness Reduction 
Act 2017 and Housing Services are to 
make use of this risk assessment to 
direct resources to areas of highest risk.   
Consideration should be given to 
reporting the risk assessment to CMT/ 
Councillors.  

Report to CMT and consideration be 
given to raising the risk assessment at 
the Scrutiny Committee

Page 56



Creditors system.

Staff should be raising purchase orders 
promptly before placing orders for goods 
and services. It was found that several 
POs were being placed after invoices 
had been received. 

All staff to be reminded to ensure that a 
purchase order has to be raised on the 
Council’s finance system prior to placing 
an order with a Supplier. 

Leisure (greenspace) income generation. 

Review and improve income reported by 
Council leisure contractor. Not all golf 
income due to the Council had been 
identified as being recorded on 
contractor system, so there was a need 
to review income recording processes 
with contractor. 

Golf income findings to be raised with 
contractor and agree action plan. 
Periodic meetings are to be held with 
contractor going forward to improve 
income. 

Leisure (greenspace) income generation. 

Audit found that year on year income 
was down on 3 months in respect of golf 
and foot golf at Frimley Lodge.  

Discuss findings with contractor and 
agree action plan to improve 
performance 

 

The Council’s External Auditor KPMG provides assurance on the accuracy of the 
year end statement of Accounts and the overall adequacy of securing and improving 
value for money. The most recent Audit Letter, issued in December 2017, gave an 
unqualified opinion in respect of the financial statements and value for money.

Review of key outcome indicators
Internal Audit has undertaken a review to confirm that the arrangements described 
above have been in place throughout the year. 

The key outcome indicators below have been used to assess the quality of 
governance arrangements in 2017/18:

Issues Identified Performance for 2017/18
Formal reports by sec 151 or Monitoring 
officer

None issued

Outcomes from Standards Committee of 
Monitoring Officer investigations

No breaches of member or officer code 
of conduct have occurred

Proven Frauds carried out by members 
or officers

None identified in 2017/18

Objections received from local electors None in 2017/18

Local Government Ombudsman referrals 
upheld exceed national average

Data to be completed however 2016/17 
was below national average

Page 57



Unsatisfactory/limited internal audit 
report

None apart from those identified above

Follow up of issues identified in 2017/18
Last year’s Annual Governance Statement highlighted three key areas for 
improvement. The table below sets out the action has been taken to address these 
issues in the current year:

Issues identified in 2017/18 Action Taken to Date
The purchase of the Town centre brings 
significant new risks and governance 
issues

The Council has appointed professional 
advisers to run and manage the centre 
and has put in place a governance 
structure consisting of the Chief 
Executive, the s151 Officer, the Leader 
and Deputy Leader to monitor 
performance. In addition there has been 
regular reporting to 
Members on performance to the 
Executive and the Scrutiny Committee.

Surrey Heath becoming lead authority for 
the Joint Waste partnership

The Council has put in place a team to 
manage the contract arrangements and 
this reports through a formal public joint 
waste committee which monitors 
performance.

Implementation of the General Data 
Protection Regulation

A Data Protection Officer has been 
appointed. All staff were required to 
complete mandatory formal training on 
the GDPR regulations.

Any issues identified for 2018/19
Apart from the audit issues above the Council has identified, the following issues are 
to be addressed during the coming year and any action planned accordingly. 

Issues identified in 2018/19 Action Taken 
Implementation of the General Data 
Protection Regulation

Work will continue to be undertaken to 
ensure that the Council complies with the 
GDPR in accordance with its 
Implementation Plan.

London Road Block Development A team of professional advisers will be 
put place to ensure that the Council has 
the expertise to carry this project forward. 
Members will be consulted at various 
stages to ensure that they understand 
the opportunities and risks of the project.
  

Introduction of IAS 9 The implications of this new accounting 
standard on the Council’s general fund, 
particularly in relation to investments, will 
be explored during the year. 

New contract Arena Leisure centre Professional advisers in place to ensure 

Page 58



that the Council follows an OJEU 
compliant process and can make an 
informed judgement as to the options 
presented by tenderers.

Change of Auditor The Council will work closely with its new 
auditor, BDO, to ensure that they are on 
board for the 2018/19 year end. 

CONCLUSION

The Council is satisfied that appropriate governance arrangements are in place 
however it remains committed to maintaining and where possible improving these 
arrangements, in particular by addressing the issues identified in this report.

Karen Whelan
Chief Executive

Cllr Moira Gibson
Leader

Page 59



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	Minutes

	4 Financial Statements Audit Plan 2017/18
	04b Financial statements Audit Plan Annex
	External Audit Plan 2017/18
	Headlines
	Content 
	�1.  Introduction
	2.  Financial statements audit planning
	2.  Financial statements audit planning
	2.  Financial statements audit planning
	2.  Financial statements audit planning
	2.  Financial statements audit planning
	2.  Financial statements audit planning
	3.  Value for money arrangements work
	3.  Value for money arrangements work
	�4.  Other matters 
	�4.  Other matters 
	�Appendix 1: Key elements of our financial statements audit approach
	Appendix 2: Independence and objectivity requirements
	Appendix 3: Quality framework 
	Slide Number 18


	5 Certification of Claims and Returns
	05b Certification of Claims and Returns Annex 1
	05c Certification of Claims and Returns Annex 2

	6 Internal Audit Annual Report 2018/19
	06b Internal Audit Annex

	7 Annual Corporate Governance Statement
	07b Annual Governance Statement Annex


